
Governance Review Working Group

Date: Monday, 23rd September, 2019
Time: 6.30 pm
Venue: Committee Room - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

Essex CB11 4ER

Chairman: Councillor A Coote
Members: Councillors A Coote, C Criscione, J Evans, R Freeman, N Gregory, 

V Isham, A Khan, P Lees and G Sell

AGENDA
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

1 Election of Vice-Chair

To elect a Vice-Chair of the Working Group.

2 Apologies for absence and declarations of interest

To receive any apologies and declarations of interest.

3 Local Government Legal Framework - Background and 
Overview

To receive a briefing on the legal framework in which the Council 
makes decisions. 

4 Note of the workshop held on 4 September 2019 5 - 8

To receive the note of the LGA Governance workshop held on 4 
September 2019.

5 Timetable of meetings

Public Document Pack



To agree a timetable of meetings for the Governance Review 
Working Group (emailed separately). 

6 Governance Review Working Group: Scoping Report 9 - 30

To consider the Governance Review Working Group draft scoping 
report for amendment and comment. For reference, please find 
attached:

 Governance Review - Indicative Timetable presented at Full 
Council 30 July 2019

 LGA: Examples of Councils with Committee Systems
 Governance Review report – Standards & Constitutional 

Oversight Committee, Wirral Council. 
  



For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548 
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



NOTE OF GOVERNANCE REVIEW WORKSHOP FACILITATED BY 
LGA ON 4 SEPTEMBER 2019

Present:

Chair: Councillor Coote

Councillors Criscione, Freeman, Gregory, Lees, Khan and Sell.

Officers: Dawn French; Lucinda Bell, Ben Ferguson, Simon Pugh. 

LGA: Kirsty Human, Bob Jennings. 

 

1. Welcomes and Introductions – ‘What are we trying to achieve?’

Members discussed the purpose of the Governance Review, their views on 
the current Cabinet System and what they wanted to achieve. 

The following points were raised:

 The Review was being undertaken due to perceived/actual 
shortcomings of the current governance structure:

o The Cabinet system is perceived as remote, undemocratic and 
unengaged with the wider public. Members brought up instances 
of door knocking and hearing the common complaint “the 
Council isn’t listening.”

o The Cabinet structure excludes non-executive members, 
particularly those of the Opposition, from the decision making 
process. This is disrespectful to both the electorate and the 
members they have elected. 

o Cabinet concentrates too much power at the top of the 
organisation. 

o The Cabinet system is vulnerable to strong willed individuals 
and there is a perceived lack of accountability and transparency 
(an identical comment was also raised regarding the potential 
weaknesses of the Committee System).

o A lack of checks and balances in the decision making process.
o The existing culture was ‘personality led’ resulting in a further 

concentration of power.
 These perceived shortcomings could be overcome by establishing a 

more democratic and inclusive governance structure. As well as an 
inclusive decision making process, members highlighted the following 
as desired elements of an improved structure:

o Member independence – councillors should vote as they wished 
and not be whipped on party lines.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



o Transparency, accountability and good governance – the best 
possible mechanism should be in place that serves in the best 
interest of the public. 

o The direction of the Review should be led by evidence based 
research.

o Robust checks and balances
o A system that utilises the skills of all councillors.
o A stable yet flexible system that’s fit for purpose in the ‘modern 

world’ e.g. efficient decision making. 

2. Design Principles

Kirsty Human and Bob Jennings (LGA) led an exercise on Design Principles.
Members raised the following points on what they perceived as the strengths 
of the current system, and areas that needed improvement:

STRENGTHS AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
History Silo working practices
Speed of decision making Lack of accountability for Portfolio 

Holders
Cross party openness on Cabinet No cross party work on council 

initiatives 
Back benchers can choose how 
much to be involved

Backbenchers feel disengaged

Officer/Member relations Officer/Member relations 
Strong Leadership Strong Leadership

Role of Scrutiny
Inclusivity 
Political culture (exclusive decision 
making, strongman leadership, 
concentration of power)

In summary, Kirsty Human said a council’s culture and personnel were just as 
important as the governance system in place. She gave scenarios in which 
one could have a Committee System that still concentrated power and 
decision making in too few hands, and, in comparison, a Cabinet System that 
delegated powers and encouraged inclusive decision making. She said there 
were many avenues to explore and a modified version of the Cabinet or 
Committee system could address many of the problems members had raised. 

The slides that were presented by the LGA have been circulated with 
members of the WG. 

3. Next Steps

Page 6



Members discussed practical considerations of the Review and next steps:

 Timetable – members were informed that the timetable for 
implementation (as attached to the Council report, 30 July) was 
extremely tight and clarity on a way forward would need to be achieved 
before Christmas. The adoption of a new governance structure would 
need to be approved at Annual Council in May 2020, or May 2021, 
depending on the speed and outcome of the Review. The Constitution 
would also need to be redrafted and submitted for Council approval. If 
members opted for May 2020, there would be no time for public 
consultation.   

 Cost – members were informed that the average cost of a change in 
Governance arrangements was between £17,000 and £250,000 
depending on the size of the Local Authority (LGA source). 

 Next meeting – Members would have further opportunity to evaluate 
current governance arrangements and learn more about the legal 
framework, which in turn would inform the scope of the Governance 
Review. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Scoping Report for Governance Review Working Group

Review Topic Governance Model

Scoping Report to go to meeting on 23.09.2019

Review to take place at meeting on TBC

Lead Officer TBC

Terms of Reference
(to include the scope of the Review)

To find the best governance model, modified as 
necessary, for this Council by:

 Establishing what principles UDC 
consider relevant to its decision making   

 Examining the current model, and how 
this might be modified to incorporate the 
identified principles

 Considering alternative models of 
governance, and how any of these, if 
adopted, may operate 

Purpose and/or Objective of the 
Review 
(what the review should achieve)

Purpose: 
 To find the best Governance model, 

modified as necessary, for UDC
 
Objectives: 

 To evaluate current governance 
arrangements against the Council’s 
identified principles 

 To consider modifying the current model 
so that the Council’s principles are 
satisfactorily incorporated into its decision 
making process

 To evaluate alternative models of 
governance 

 To consider the timeframe for future 
actions, bearing in mind the possibility of 
a General Election, the need to meet the 
Council’s timetable of meetings and the 
statutory timetable for implementing a 
new model of governance at either the 
next annual meeting in May 2020 or at a 
later annual meeting

Methodology / Approach
(methods to be used to gather 

 Research by members to be decided 
further.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



evidence)  Interviews?
 Contacting other authorities.  
 Public engagement?

Written Evidence Required  Reports by members.  

Potential Witnesses  Council members
 Council officers 
 Other Authorities
 The LGA/other expert organisations?

Page 10



Indicative Timetable – presented to Full Council 30 July 2019 

30 July 2019 Council agrees to establish a working 
group, appoint members and possibly 
outline terms of reference

August 2019 All member briefing on the principles of 
the models, pros and cons, different 
ways of doing it (and possibly the 
experience of other councils)

August – October 2019 Working group meetings identifying the 
objectives to be achieved from 
new/different model, pros and cons, 
what works what doesn’t work currently, 
consult public about their perception of 
democratic deficit if time permits – (it will 
be very tight to design and deliver the 
consultation and to analyse results to 
inform recommendations) 

November 2019 Report to GAP Committee 21 November 
on outline principles and proposals for 
any change. (The deadline for 
preparation of a report is 8 November.)

21 November 2019 GAP review the outline principles and 
proposals for any changes or a modified 
governance model

3 December 2019 Council agrees any change or 
determines in principle to modify 
governance model

Subject to the decision above

6 February 2020 (or later special 
meeting in March 2020)

GAP reviews a new draft constitution 
and detailed proposals for governance 
arrangements.

By early April 2020 Independent Remuneration Panel 
members have considered the new 
governance arrangements and have 
recommended a revised allowances 
scheme. 

Page 11

file://data/democratic/Committees%20and%20Meetings/Committees%20and%20Working%20Groups/Governance%20Review/Governance%20Review%20Proposal%20to%20establish%20a%20Council%20Working%20Group.pdf


22 April 2020 Council approve revised constitution 
and resolves to adopt a new 
governance model from 21 May 2020. 

22 April to 21 May 2020 Deliver training for new ways of working 
to members and officers

Page 12



1

Governance Structures: Committee System 

Purpose 

To provide examples of lower tier authorities operating the Committee system (4th option).  
Specifically: 

 What committees they operate

 Terms of Reference for policy-type committees

Example Councils 

 West Lindsey District Council Pages 2 - 3
 Worcester City Council Pages 4 - 5
 Borough of Wellingborough Page 6
 Malvern Hills District Council Page 7 - 8
 Ribble Valley Borough Council Page 9 -10

Other Councils you might want to explore 

 Canterbury City 
 Cambridge City 
 Purbeck District Council 

Other Useful Resources 

Centre for Public Scrutiny has a number of publications, although the case studies might be 
somewhat dated, some of the guidance might be useful: 

 http://www.cfps.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Rethinking-Governance.pdf

 http://cfps.org.uk.surface3.vm.bytemark.co.uk/domains/cfps.org.uk/local/media/uploa
ds/14.pdf 

 

Page 13

http://www.cfps.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Rethinking-Governance.pdf
http://cfps.org.uk.surface3.vm.bytemark.co.uk/domains/cfps.org.uk/local/media/uploads/14.pdf
http://cfps.org.uk.surface3.vm.bytemark.co.uk/domains/cfps.org.uk/local/media/uploads/14.pdf


2

West Lindsey District Council 

Politic Governance Structure 

Types of Committees and Terms of Reference 

 Full Council 

Regulatory Functions
 Planning
 Licensing – with sub panels 
 Regulatory (Taxis) – with sub panels 
 Governance and Audit 
 Standards Sub 

Policy Functions
 Corporate Policy and Resources – See Terms of Reference 
 Prosperous Communities – See Terms of Reference 

Scrutiny Function
 Challenge and Improvement Committee 

Other
 Chief Officer Employment Committee 

Background 

Page 14

https://democracy.west-lindsey.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=142
https://democracy.west-lindsey.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=176


3

West Lindsey have always operated a Committee System.  Due to their size, they were 
permitted under the Local Government Act 2000 to remain in a committee structure. 

They are currently considering removing their Scrutiny Committee as under the Committee 
Structure it is not required, and it can often struggle to find an effective role, in light of their 
decisions being made by politically balanced committees.  

They do find themselves referring things between the two policy committees, as a scheme 
can be approved by Prosperous Communities Committee, but may require additional funds 
and this would be in the remit of Corporate Policy and Resources.  Again this is an area they 
continue to try and refine, with some Members wishing to see the two Committees merged. 

Further Information 
The Constitution can be downloaded here.  The relevant sections are: 

 Part 2 : Articles
Article 8 sets out the decision making structure (see above diagram).

 Part 4: Responsibilities and Functions 
This lists the responsibility of functions for each of the above listed committees.

Page 15

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/8wTRCO796Fqvg1iwMcn-


4

Worcester City Council

Politic Governance Structure 

Types of Committees and Terms of Reference 

 Full Council 

Policy Committees
 Communities Committee - Terms of Reference 
 Environment Committee - Terms of Reference 
 Policy and Resources Committee - Terms of Reference 

o Income Generation Sub Committee
o Personnel and General Purposes Sub Committee
o Place and Economic Development Sub Committee

Regulatory Committees 
 Audit and Governance Committee
 Standards Committee

o Standards Committee - Assessment Sub-Committee
o Standards Committee - Hearings Sub-Committee
o Standards Committee - Review Sub-Committee

Page 16

http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/documents/g4116/Public%20reports%20pack%2020th-Jun-2017%2019.00%20Communities%20Committee.pdf?T=10
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/documents/g4111/Public%20reports%20pack%2027th-Jun-2017%2019.00%20Environment%20Committee.pdf?T=10
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/documents/g4080/Public%20reports%20pack%2030th-May-2017%2019.00%20Policy%20and%20Resources%20Committee.pdf?T=10
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=104
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=137
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=294
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=302
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=303


5

 Licensing and Environmental Health Committee
o Licensing Sub Committee - Licensing Act 2003
o Licensing Sub Committee - Taxis
o Licensing Sub-Committee - Gambling Act 2005
o Licensing Sub-Committee - Sex Establishments
o Licensing Sub-Committee - Street Trading

 Planning Committee

Background 

The council originally had a committee system in place until 2001, adopting a leader and 
cabinet system in 2002, as required by national legislation.   However the Council reverted 
back to the Committee System in May 2017.   

Further Information

 Responsibilities and Functions set out in the Constituion. 

 Report to Full Council agreeing Committee Structure February 2017 sets out the 
functions of each Committee and rationale for change. 

Page 17

http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=197
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=166
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=167
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=289
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=380
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=293
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=130
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/documents/s39047/Responsibility%20for%20Functions.pdf
http://committee.cityofworcester.gov.uk/documents/g3865/Public%20reports%20pack%2021st-Feb-2017%2019.00%20Council.pdf?T=10


6

Borough Council of Wellingborough 

Politic Governance Structure 

They do not have a diagram of their committee structure. 

Types of Committees and Terms of Reference 

 Council  

Policy Committees –Terms of Reference are on pages 34-37 the Constituion.
 Resources Committee 
 Services Committee 
 Development Committee 

Regulatory 
 Licensing Full Committee 

o Licensing sub-committee 
 Planning Committee  

Scrutiny 
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Other 
 Partnerships and Performance Committee
 Standards Committee
 Audit Committee

Background 

 List of Committees

 Constituion
   

Further Information

There are currently have three policy committees; Services, Resources and Development.  
However the constitution is currently under review so this is subject to change.

Each committee has a manager (currently a Director/Assistant Director), who has overall 
responsibility for the committee.  Each committee also has a chairman and vice-chairman 
who is generally a member of the councils current administration.

Page 18

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/uoONCvgJLcMLq6CE_5Kb
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/15/resources_committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/30/services_committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/20/development_committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/28/licensing_full_committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/12/licensing_sub-committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/19/planning_committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/26/overview_and_scrutiny_committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/31/partnerships_and_performance_committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/11/standards_committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/24/audit_committee
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/3CnnCqj8LImkn5SvIvkX
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/uoONCvgJLcMLq6CE_5Kb


7

Malvern Hills District Council 

Politic Governance Structure 

Types of Committees and Terms of Reference 

 Council 

Policy Committees
 Executive - Terms of Reference (page 57)

Regulatory 
 Licensing and Appeals Committee
 Area Planning Committee - Terms of Reference (page 74)

Overview and Scrutiny
 Overview and Scrutiny 

Other 
 Standards Committee 
 Audit Committee

Background 

Whilst Council approves the overall policy framework, most policy decisions are made by 
one or other of the following two policy committees, both of which exercise executive powers 
on behalf of the Council:

 Executive Committee - implements policy and takes executive decisions (collectively) 
in respect of all Council matters and services which are not specifically reserved for 
Council or delegated to another Committee of the Council or to Officers.

 Planning Committee - deals with all matters of planning policy and advises Council in 
relation to the adoption of the Local Plan.

Page 19

https://www.malvernhills.gov.uk/documents/10558/125552/MHDC+Constituation+MAR+2017-WEB.pdf/3dbbb154-bee6-3178-70eb-3385f0a0826a
https://www.malvernhills.gov.uk/documents/10558/125552/MHDC+Constituation+MAR+2017-WEB.pdf/3dbbb154-bee6-3178-70eb-3385f0a0826a
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/11/standards_committee
http://www.wellingborough.gov.uk/meetings/committee/24/audit_committee


8

 It is a small district with only 60,000 electorate and about 78,000 population. The 
Committee system allows for quite straight forward decision making in a relatively 
small council.

 The leader is elected every year by the whole council, as well as the 9 specific 
portfolio holder roles which make up the Executive Committee.  5 are filled by the 
ruling administration and 4 posts filled by opposition members.  In reality however 
Council makes most decisions and reports are taken through the executive more as 
a matter of course/for reference rather than for decision.

Further Information

List of Committees

Page 20

http://moderngov.malvernhills.gov.uk/documents/s2559/Part%201%20Summary%20and%20Explanation.pdf?J=12


9

Ribble Valley 

Politic Governance Structure 

Types of Committees and Terms of Reference 

 Council 

Policy Committees - Terms of Reference  (Page 6 onwards)
 Community 
 Economic Development
 Health and Housing 
 Policy and Finance 

Regulatory Committees

Page 21

https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/9059/powers_and_duties_of_the_council_and_its_committees_part_31.pdf
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/5/community
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/31/economic_development
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/7/health_and_housing
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/8/policy_and_finance


10

 Licensing 
 Planning and Development 

Other 
 Standards Committee 
 Accounts and Audit 
 Parish Councils Liaison 
 Personnel 

Background 
The Council have always operated the Committee system.   Cindy Lowthian recently led a 
CPC there and found it worked quite well.  

They have recently reviewed their structures to include a new Economic Development 
committee that can focus more on their economic development priorities.  Report on this can 
be found: here. 

Page 22

https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/12/licensing
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/10/planning_and_development
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/14/standards_committee
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/15/accounts_and_audit
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/9/parish_councils_liaison
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/meetings/committee/6/personnel
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/6073/agenda_item_6_-_creation_of_economic_development_committee


STANDARDS AND CONSTITUTIONAL OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

11th June 2019

REPORT TITLE: GOVERNANCE REVIEW

REPORT OF: Director of Governance and 
Assurance

REPORT SUMMARY

The Annual Meeting of Council required this Committee to look at the Council’s 
governance arrangements. The purpose was to include options to change the 
Council’s form of governance, with an express intention to consider adopting a 
committee system as well as different executive arrangements. This is to report in 
September to allow for detailed work to follow for adoption of any new form of 
governance from the next Annual Meeting.

This report sets out the various options and arguments for the Committee, in brief, 
and recommends establishing a workshop and working group of the Committee to 
examine the issues further. 

RECOMMENDATION/S

It is recommended that the Committee establish:

(a) A cross-party workshop to explore available forms of governance and 
governance arrangements in greater detail; and

(b) An all-party working group to consider the outcome of the workshop and make 
a recommendation to the Committee’s meeting of 11th September to refer to 
full Council.

 

Page 23



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The Annual meeting of Council on 14th May 2019 resolved to: 
“charge the Standards and Constitutional Oversight Committee to conduct a 
review of the governance arrangements of the Council, with the objective to 
produce, in September 2019, an interim report on options and preferred 
outline for further consideration."

1.2 Set out in the report are the headline considerations and advice concerning a 
change to the form of governance of the Council and the suggestion of a 
working group and an all member workshop be held to consider a 
recommendation to Committee and Council within the desired timeframe.

2.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

 2.1 Statutory Position  

2.1.1 Prior to the Local Government Act 2000, local authority governance operated 
entirely under the provisions of the Local Government 1972 (and likewise the 
Local Government Act 1933), which provided for decisions to be made at full 
meetings of Council or for authority to be delegated for the exercise of Council 
functions to be undertaken by committees, sub-committees or an officer of the 
Council. Over time this was amended, principally by the  Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989, providing stricter requirements on Member decisions being made in 
public, the publication of papers to be considered and that committees be 
made up of councillors from all political groups.

2.1.2 The Local Government Act 2000 introduced a new system of governance for 
all local authorities, with the exception of councils with a small population. 
Whilst the 1972 Act remained in place for a defined list of functions, most 
functions of the local authority were required to be governed by a new 
executive system. The executive system initially had several variations, but 
was amended to became either a Leader and Cabinet system or a directly 
elected Mayor and Cabinet system, each with very similar powers (and 
similarly referred to in statute as ‘the senior executive member’). 

2.1.3 The 2000 Act has since been significantly amended for local authorities in 
England by the Localism Act 2011, from which time councils may adopt one of 
the following forms of governance. These are: 
(a) executive arrangements (either a leader or directly elected mayor and 

cabinet); 
(b) a committee system; or 
(c) prescribed arrangements;  
which are briefly described further below.

Page 24



2.2. Executive arrangements (Leader and Cabinet)
 
2.2.1 The current Cabinet system has the following key principles: 

(i) The senior executive member, the Leader at Wirral Council, is the holder 
of all ‘executive functions’ and so is responsible for specified functions of 
a local authority and is responsible for most day to day management and 
service decisions of an authority.

(ii) The Leader must appoint at least two and a maximum of nine other 
Members to the executive (known as the Cabinet) to support the Leader 
in carrying out their role.

(iii) The Leader determines whether executive decisions are taken by 
members of the Cabinet collectively, as a committee of Cabinet or 
individually by the Leader or another single Cabinet member, or by an 
officer.  

(iv) Political balance rules (requirement to have the same proportion of 
members of each group on a body as on the Full Council) do not apply 
to the Cabinet or Cabinet Committees.  

(v) Whilst the Leader determines who makes an executive decision, the 
Council determines how it is to be made through the executive 
procedure rules in Council’s Constitution. (This is not the same in a 
directly elected mayoral model, where the mayor’s written consent is 
required before the Council can alter executive arrangements.)

(vi) The Budget/Council tax and certain policy framework documents, the 
Corporate Plan and Local Plan (local development framework) for 
example, are the responsibility of the Cabinet to formulate but are the 
responsibility of full Council to approve or object to.

(vii) Decisions reserved for the Council (deemed non-executive) continue to 
operate under the 1972 Act regime via committees.  These tend to be of 
a quasi-judicial or regulatory nature, for example development control.

(viii) At least one Overview and Scrutiny Committee must be established with 
certain powers and functions of scrutiny set out in legislation. These 
include duties in relation to health, flood risk management and crime and 
disorder, and 'call-in' of key executive decisions. 

2.3 Committee System 
 
2.3.1 A Committee system would have the following key principles: 

(i) Decisions are taken through committees, appointed by full council. 
Political balance rules apply to these Committees and any Sub-
Committees.

(ii) Council or each Committee determines whether decisions are taken by 
Council, a committee or sub-committee of Council or individually by an 
officer. There are no single Member decisions.

Page 25



(iii) There are no restrictions on the number of committees, meeting 
frequency, or the size of the membership.

(iv) There may be at least one Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
established with powers and functions of scrutiny but it is not a 
requirement. Council may choose not to have a separate overview and 
scrutiny function, in which case the statutory scrutiny functions in relation 
to health, flood risk management and crime and disorder would need to 
be exercised by the authority. 

(v) Full Council sets the budget/Council tax and approves certain policy 
framework documents, for example the Corporate Plan. 

(vi) Full Council motions, as now, are to be differentiated from decisions 
made in the exercise of the Authority’s functions. Formal decisions will 
require officer reports and background papers before the matter is 
considered and a decision is made.

(vii) There is not a ‘Leader’ in decision making terms. Nonetheless it is 
common that a Leader position is created, seen as the principal political 
spokesperson for the Council with ostensible responsibility for 
representing its views to the public and external organisations. This 
person is traditionally also the Chair of the principal committee 
responsible for development of policy and budgetary matters.

(viii) To allow for business between committee meetings, extensive 
delegation is provided to officers. Where urgent and key, such decisions 
are often exercised by the officer in consultation with the Chair of the 
relevant Committee or a councillor appointed as Leader.   

2.4 Prescribed arrangements

2.4.1 'Prescribed arrangements' means an alternative form of governance that is 
neither a cabinet system or a committee system proposed by the Authority but 
this must be approved by the Secretary of State and only if those alternative 
arrangements would be appropriate for other authorities.  

2.4.2 No Authority has so far adopted or proposed an alternative model, and it is 
difficult to say what such a system might look like.  

 
2.5 Advantages and Disadvantages of the Governance Forms
 
2.5.1 In considering a change specifically from a Cabinet form of Governance to a 

Committee system there are a number of advantages of each system which 
would have to be considered and looked at in close detail.  The following is a 
very brief snapshot of what are often put forward as the pros and cons of each 
system 

 
2.5.2 Key arguments often put in favour of an executive arrangements form of 

governance include: 
(i) efficient decision making and delivery and thus speed of reaction to 

changing circumstances or requirements in a business like way; 

Page 26



(ii) clear lines of responsibility and transparency; 
(iii) clear leadership of the Council; 
(iv) clear separation between decision makers and those holding to 

account; and 
(v) easier partnership working. 

 
2.5.3 Key criticisms often made of an executive arrangements form of governance 

include:  
(i) power concentrated in too few hands; 
(ii) under-utilised backbenchers; 
(iii) decisions taken ‘behind closed doors’. 

 
2.5.4 Key arguments often put in favour of a committee system form of governance 

include:  
(i) all Members have the opportunity to be directly involved in decision 

making; 
(ii) decisions are made through politically balanced Committees;
(iii) the resulting greater cross-party debate leads to better decision making 

and consideration of all alternatives; 
(iv) all decisions in are made in a public meeting.

2.5.5 Key criticisms often made of a committee system form of governance include:  

(i) bureaucratic and much slower decisions; 
(ii) voting on party political lines and application of the 'whip' interferes with 

properly considering all options and genuine debate;
(iii) no individual responsibility and accountability and the role of a Leader 

is opaque; 
(iv) increased officer briefings and support required;
(v) much higher cost of administration; and
(vi) slow decision making and the resulting requirement for officer decision 

making at a higher level. 
 
 2.6 Permitted Variations – Hybrid systems
 
2.6.1 The constraints within each form of governance leave individual local 

authorities with significant ability to address perceived advantages and 
disadvantages and develop a governance system appropriate to their local 
circumstances. Within each form of governance, these variations of 
governance arrangements may be such that the two systems might look 
almost identical by comparison or vary from each other considerably. 

2.6.2 In considering a change of governance arrangements, the Council could 
consider a number of alternatives to a formal Executive or Committee system. 
In each case, the arrangements are agreed by full Council (the ‘how’ in 

Page 27



executive arrangements and not the ‘who’ determined by the Leader) and are 
captured in the council’s constitution. Examples would include: 

 
(a) A ‘hybrid system’, whereby some councils have created versions of the 

leader/cabinet system (which means that they do not require a formal 
change under the Act) that include aspects of the committee system. 
The most common arrangement is to set up non-decision making group 
of councillors, usually corresponding to cabinet portfolios, which examine 
papers and make recommendations about how decisions should be 
made. The decisions are subsequently made at meetings of the cabinet 
or by individual cabinet members, and may well follow the 
recommendations of the ‘committees’ although they are not legally 
required to do so. 

(b) An amended Cabinet system – which could involve more or all decisions 
being taken by Cabinet collectively rather than by individual Cabinet 
members, together with increased scrutiny from non-cabinet members.  

(c) Enhancing the role of Full Council , which could include a greater role in 
strategic decisions through an increased Policy Framework and pre-
Cabinet decision scrutiny and debate 

(d) An as yet undefined system that would meet the criteria for "prescribed 
arrangements". 

 
2.7 Process of change  
 
2.7.1 Any change from the current Cabinet system to another form of governance 

including a committee system would involve: 
(i) Passing a resolution approving the change at Full Council. 
(ii) As soon as practicable after passing the resolution, make the provisions 

of the new arrangements available for inspection 
(iii) Publish in one or more newspapers circulating in the area a notice which 

describes the features of the new system and timescales by which the 
change would take effect.  There is no requirement to formally consult on 
any proposals. 

(iv) The change must be implemented either at the next Annual Meeting 
following the approval or at a later Annual Meeting specified in the 
resolution where the approval was given.

(v) The full Council can therefore decide at which Annual Meeting in future it 
may wish any new governance arrangements to be introduced.   

(vi) Once the change is made, a change from the new form of governance 
cannot be made again for 5 years from the date of the approval.  

(vii) It is possible that interim arrangements would be required during a 
changeover to a new system.  

2.7.2 A change of executive arrangements, without changing the form of 
governance, requires a simple majority of Council.

Page 28



3.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

3.1 There are significant implications for the Council in changing its decision 
making structure to a new form of governance and correspondingly less for 
amended executive governance arrangements. 

3.2 Examples of increased resources as a result includes:

 A comprehensive rewrite of the Council's constitution, governance and 
decision making processes would be required, for which external legal 
support will be required (albeit that this is now a necessary project in any 
event). This will include a comprehensive review of the Scheme of 
Delegation to officers.

 Those authorities that have changed form of governance successfully 
have expressed that it is best developed over eighteen months. A shorter 
time frame may mean increased resource and/or a period of change 
whilst the new governance arrangements bed down and are amended. 

 Impact on the decision flow and relationship with current officer structure, 
including the design and delivery of the budget and major policies.

 Significant day to day resource implications will be had for those officers 
involved in formal and informal engagement with Councillors. This will be 
increased dependent on the decision making structures designed and the 
number and timings (day or evening) of decision-making meetings.  

 Specific significant implications for Democratic Services (and Scrutiny) 
officers.

 A new approach may be required to engagement with partners and 
partnerships. 

 Review members' remuneration arrangements. 

 Additional extensive training for members and officers. 
 
3.3 The majority of these issues will be addressed during this period in greater 

detail, dependent on the outcome of the initial view of the Committee in its 
report to Council following its September meeting.

3.4 Beyond this, detailed consideration will be required to be given to the wide 
ranging implications of any change to the current political system of 
governance. It will represent a key and integral element of the overall 
organisational vision of the Council and how it interacts with other 
stakeholders, including those forming the Wirral Partnership with the Council.

4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS AND RELEVANT RISKS

4.1 The legal provisions, risks and implications are inherent in this report and the 
investigatory work ahead. 

Page 29



4.2 There are clearly major implications for any change in governance 
arrangements, in terms of resources, transparency of decisions, effective 
engagement with the public and effective use of Council and officer time.  

 
4.3 A clear fundamental principal of any governance review must be that any 

system of governance must reflect and be designed to meet the requirements 
of the Council so that it can function effectively and efficiently and that it 
supports its functional and service delivery framework to the community.  

5. BACKGROUND PAPERS / REFERENCE MATERIAL
5.1 A paper produced jointly by the Local Government Association and by the 

Centre for Public Scrutiny, “Rethinking governance - Practical steps for 
councils considering changes to their governance arrangements” can be 
found at: www.cfps.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Rethinking-Governance.pdf.

REPORT AUTHOR: Philip McCourt 
Director of Governance and Assurance
Tel: 0151 691 8569

Page 30


	Agenda
	4 Note of the workshop held on 4 September 2019
	6 Governance Review Working Group: Scoping Report
	Indicative Timetable for Governance Review
	LGA: Examples of councils with Committee Systems
	Governance Review report: Standards and Constitutional Oversight Committee, Wirral Council


